
 
 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
GMU-1707-21 

COACH TRAINING SERVICES 
 
Responses are in RED. 
 

1. List of Items, Schedule of Requirements, Scope of Work, Terms of Reference, Bill of Materials required.  
a. Please read the RFP documents, available here: https://fiscal.gmu.edu/purchasing/do-business-with-

mason/view-current-solicitation-opportunities/  
 

2. Soft Copy of the Tender Document through email. 
a. Please read the RFP documents.  

 
3. Names of countries that will be eligible to participate in this tender.   

a. We will accept submissions as per the RFP documents. 
 

4. Information about the Tendering Procedure and Guidelines 
a. Please read the RFP documents. 

 
5. Estimated Budget for this Purchase. 

a. We will not be disclosing a budget for this purchase. 
 

6. Any Extension of Bidding Deadline? 
a. Not at this time 

 
7. Any Addendum or Pre Bid meeting Minutes? 

a. No 
 

8. Regarding XI. Statement of Needs: The RFP states “Contractor must also have completed the ICF PCC Markers 
Training prior to serving as learning lab advisor or assessor.” Since the ICF PCC Markers Training has been on 
hold during development of the updated PCC Markers, will offerors be considered with personnel who have not 
yet completed the training, but will complete it as soon as it is again offered? 

a. Yes 
 

9. What kind of approach/methodology is GMU looking to build within its Leadership Coaching for Organizational 
Well-Being coach training program?  Is there a common approach/methodology GMU is looking for that is 
uniform across all its contractor coaches-beyond the ICF Accreditation and associated ICF training? 

a. The RFP documents list areas of expertise that align with our approach. The Mason coaching focus 
emphasizes strengths-based approaches and methodologies as well as transformative practices that 
deepen self-awareness, develop coaching presence, and facilitate individual and organizational well-
being. The program was designed by the Center for the Advancement of Well-Being (CWB), a national 
leader in the science and application of well-being. The mission of the Center for the Advancement of 
Well-Being is to catalyze human well-being by promoting the science and practices that lead to a life of 
vitality, purpose, resilience, and engagement. As an interdisciplinary teaching and research center, we 
are dedicated to helping individuals and organizations thrive in a world of increasing complexity and 
uncertainty. There is no one single common methodology. The program features a competency and 
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research-based curriculum that aligns with the International Coaching Federation (ICF) requirements 
and coaching competencies. Please review the CWB website for more information: 
https://wellbeing.gmu.edu/lead/our-programs-masoncoaching  
 

10. Is GMU’s ideal coaching partner a company that can provide and manage (if needed) a team of coaches who 
meet all criteria, deliver all services, and support GMU’s vision for sustaining and building its existing coach 
training program? Or, is GMU looking to build and manage a team of contractors from different companies? 

a. We are not in need of a company to provide and manage the coach training program. The program is 
managed by the Center for the Advancement of Well-Being. We are building on our excellent existing 
team of contractors who represent various companies. 

 
11. To what extent is GMU looking for a partner to collaborate in building a unique approach, methodology, and 

brand of coach training vs a partner who can deliver solid mentoring, instruction, and support in basic coaching 
skills for its existing coach training program?  If the former, what is it that GMU’s coach training program wants 
to be known for? 

a. We are looking for great partners and collaborators who can also deliver strong mentoring, 
assessments, and/or instruction. Our need is for learning lab advisors, assessors, and/or instructors. We 
believe we that our existing approach to coach training is strong, and we welcome professional 
collaboration that will enhance our unique approach. Our senior-level coaching team is known for 
developing certified coaches that are skilled and ready for the challenges facing today’s leaders. We 
know that we need leaders who can thrive in a world of increasing complexity and uncertainty. The 
Mason coaching focus emphasizes strengths-based approaches and methodologies as well as 
transformative practices that deepen self-awareness, develop coaching presence, and facilitate 
individual and organizational well-being. This experiential program was designed specifically for 
business professionals striving for positive change in team and organizational culture thrive. It features 
a competency and research-based curriculum that aligns with the International Coaching Federation 
(ICF) requirements and coaching competencies. Please review the CWB website for more information: 
https://wellbeing.gmu.edu/lead/ 
 

12. The RFP indicates that the Offeror must have completed the ICF PCC marker training prior to serving as a learning 
lab advisor or assessor.  I’m am a PCC coach but have not completed the training yet.  The ICF is updating its PCC 
marker training.  The next training isn’t scheduled until December 2021 which I plan to attend.   

a. Will my not having the training at the time of the proposal submission adversely impact consideration 
of my proposal and/or rating per section XIV Part A Initial Evaluation Criteria? No 
 

b. Will I still be eligible to be awarded a contract for that role even though it’ll be December when I 
complete the training? Yes 

 
13. What leadership, personality, and/or behavioral assessments if any are used as part of the GMU program? (i.e. 

360s, Meyers-Briggs, DiSC, FIRO etc.)?  Are there specific assessments with which you are seeking expertise?  If 
so which ones? 

a. CliftonStrengths, VIA, Leadership Circle Profile have been used as part of the program. We are not 
seeking expertise in a specific assessments, but please indicate your certifications. 

 
14. The program indicates it will be delivered virtually.  What is the delivery platform?  Zoom, Blackboard, Adobe 

Connect, etc.?  As part of experience should we also indicate what platforms we’ve used and to what extent?  
a. We currently use Zoom. We use the Blackboard LMS for student learning management during the 

course. It would be helpful to know an offeror’s experience with virtual learning and classroom 
platforms. We expect that contractors hired will know or be able to learn the necessary education 
technology for the program. 

 
15. For program management and student interaction for posting comments, homework, assignments etc., do you 

use a Learning Management System?  If so which one? 
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a. Yes - Blackboard 
 

16. For coaching or one-on-ones with students, is it expected that the Offeror have a Zoom or other account to be 
able to do virtual coaching? If so is there a preferred platform? 

a. No – but it’s certainly helpful. The preferred video platform is currently Zoom. Phone calls have often 
been used for coaching as well. 

 
17. Regarding Section XIII PROPOSAL PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS, SECTION B SPECIFIC 

REQUIREMENTS, subsection 6 Proposed Pricing, could you please provide more details on the following: 
What are the roles, responsibilities and duties of the Instructor? Are instructors expected to design and deliver 
content, or is the content already designed, so the instructor would just deliver it?  

a. Instructors are expected to design and deliver content. Training co-directors support content design. 
Some models are co-taught. 

 
What are the roles, responsibilities and duties of the Learning Lab Advisors? 

a. Duties include:  
• Assist coach training students in achieving and demonstrating the PCC level of coaching 

competency and capability  
• Small group mentorship  
• One-on-one mentor coaching  
• Coaching and feedback for observed or recorded coaching session to increase the coach’s 

capability in coaching, in alignment with the ICF Core Competencies. 
• Provide specific verbal and/or written feedback, using targeted examples from the sessions so 

that the coach knows exactly they are doing well and understands what needs to be done to 
develop a deeper level of mastery  

• Contractors can expect to attend at least 1 day per module. Learning labs are one afternoon or 
approximately 4 hours per module.  

 
What are the roles, responsibilities and duties of the Assessors? What is the time expected to be allocated to 
an assessment? What if any forms, criteria checklists or review forms need to be completed as part of the 
assessment?  

a. Duties include:  
• Assist coach training students in achieving and demonstrating the PCC level of coaching 

competency and capability  
• Feedback for observed or recorded coaching session to increase the coach’s capability in 

coaching, in alignment with the ICF Core Competencies. 
• Provide specific written feedback, using targeted examples from the sessions so that the coach 

knows exactly they are doing well and understands what needs to be done to develop a deeper 
level of mastery  

b. There is no standard time expected per assessment. Timing is mutually agreed upon with training co-
directors. We use an internal form that aligns with the ICF Core Competencies. 

 
18. For trainings that are in-person, are local travel expenses, meals, parking or mileage reimbursed? 

a. No 
 

19. It says that coaches with extensive experience will be considered if they don’t have a masters – what length of 
experience and type would be considered sufficient? 

a. PCC or MCC coaching credential and relevant experience to demonstrate deep knowledge   
 

20. Is the curriculum set for the course or is there opportunity to add additional items unique to each instructor 
such as a talent assessment to best coach the individuals? 



a. The curriculum modules are set, but instructors regularly make updates based on feedback, new 
research, and current best practices. Training co-directors support content design and would discuss 
potential new items with instructors. 
 

21. Will resumes/CVs from international (outside the US) coach trainers be acceptable? 
a. Yes 

 
 


